
MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 1 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

CITY OF ANSONIA 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

Regular Meeting – May 11, 2010 

 
Call to Order 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Ansonia Board of Aldermen was called to order at  
7 p.m. by Aldermanic President Stephen Blume.  All those present rose and 
pledged allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
 
Roll Call 
 
The secretary called the roll: 
 
Edward Adamowski, D1– present 
Robert Duffus, D1 – absent  
Jason Bender, D2 – absent 
James Fainer, D2 – absent  
Joseph Jeanette, D3– present 
John Marini, R3– present 
Robert Beall, D4 - present 

Jerome Fainer, D4 – present 
Spero Jordanides, D5 –absent 

Pasquale Pietrangelo, D5 – present  
Scott Nihill, D6 – present  

Gene Sharkey, D6 – present 
Tara Kolakowski, D7– present (7:10) 

Stephen Blume, D7 – present 
 
President Blume declared a quorum of 10 present, 4 absent. 
 
Consideration of Previous Minutes 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to accept the minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 
13, 2010 if found to be correct; SECONDED by Alderman Adamowski.  A voice 
vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 9-0. 
 
Public Session 
 
Richard Wade, President, Friends of the Ansonia Center, Inc. 
 
The mission of the Friends is to support the staff, the programs and the vision 
of the Ansonia Nature Center.  We’re here tonight to officially encourage the 
Board of Aldermen to support the reopening of the Red Wing Pond House at the 
Ansonia Nature Center as a nature-based preschool learning center, as that 
building was originally designed and built for.  We would like to present to the 
Board of Aldermen these names signed by both Ansonia residents and non-
residents that support this project.  Thank you. 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 2 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
Ann Smith, 18 Upland Terrace 
 
I want to thank the Mayor and the Aldermen for listening to us and getting 
together and talking about our mutual problems.  The problem is funds – the 
money.  I’m looking forward to you coming up on the 15th when you can see 
why people are so enthused about our Nature Center.  Our Nature Center is 
unusual – people in all the towns around – nobody’s got this kind of thing.  We 
can do something with this Red Wing Pond House that we have worked 10 years 
to build.  I’m sure there’s some way that we can work it out; that we can work 
together so we can get that grant.  Are they going to give it back?  Are you 
going to use it?  What’s going to happen to that State money?   
 
President Blume asked, did you bring our proposal to your group? 
 
Mrs. Smith replied yes, but we won’t be able to do anything about that until we 
start our preschool.  We don’t have money to pay utilities and the insurance 
until we get under way.  In the meantime we can be getting grants to finish the 
building, to get the furniture and all the things that we need. It’s so sad.  You 
should see the people that come to that place, and see the value of what they 
teach to the kids.  You all know that, don’t you?  You know the Nature Center; 
you’ve got kids that were up there.  You probably sent your kids up there, 
right?  Yeah, been there, done that, right.  Let’s see if we can work together. 
 
President Blume stated, wee don’t want to entertain the liability, the insurance, 
the utilities, the maintenance.  We’ll give you the Pond House for $1 a year.  
You can have your center.  But we cannot maintain the building, pay the 
insurance, and pay for this building.   
 
Mrs. Smith stated, I know, you have a lot of other things that are really 
prominent right now.  There must be some way we can write this resolution so 
we can get that grant.  There’s got to be a way that we can do it. 
 
President Blume stated, I talked to Corporation Counsel Blake about it before.  
As long as the resolution doesn’t put the liability on the City - it has to give us 
no responsibility as far as paying those bills. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated, I understand that.  Maybe Kevin (Blake) can think of a way. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, we have that listed on the agenda tonight.  I don’t 
want to shut off the discussion by any means, but we can’t make any decisions 
under public session.   
 
Mrs. Smith stated, okay, thank you. 
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 3 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Dave Geloso, 12 Coe Lane 
Acting Chief, Ansonia Rescue and Medical Service 
 
I just received the ordinance on the Ansonia Rescue and Medical Service and 
the Fire Department on Friday.  I just have three comments.  One is the name 
change to Ansonia Medical Service.  I thought about it, and I’m against it 
because the Fire Chief assumes the responsibility at any time that the whistle 
blows or the call goes in.  So, he is in charge of the rescue anyway, by State law.  
The Fire Department is in charge of rescue, and has been for years.  Two, when 
you change the name of the organization, you have to have new ID’s, new 
badges, new stationary, new lettering on the vehicles.  The cost is substantial 
when you come down to it.  The third and final point, when you change the 
name of the organization, people that have been there for quite a while and 
donated a lot of time and energy toward that organization, what happens is you 
feel for it, you participate, you put your heart and soul into it. When you lose 
your name, you lose your identity.  That is one of the things I think is going to 
happen.  We’re going to lose our identity.   
 
Those are the three points.  I don’t think it’s necessary to have an ordinance to 
change the name of Ansonia Rescue and Medical Service to Ansonia Medical 
Service.  I think if you keep the name, the Fire Department is in charge of the 
rescue anyhow.  It’s a cost saving and the people would appreciate it, I think, if 
the name would stay the same.  That’s it. 
 
President Blume stated, we are putting it off for a month.  There are a few other 
things that have to be done.  It’s off the agenda tonight. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, and to stop it before it goes any further, there was 
never any intention of changing it to Ansonia Fire Department and Rescue.  It’s 
just Ansonia Fire Department.   
 
Ken Plavnicky, 15 Mountainview Road 
 
I’ve been hearing a lot in the last couple of months about this Fire Museum.  
What is the Fire Museum?  Can anybody here explain it to me?  What’s it about?  
There’s a $10,000 line item in the budget for it.  What is it about? 
 
President Blume replied, it’s a fire museum that was sanctioned by the Board of 
Aldermen. 
 
Mr. Plavnicky asked, is it open to the public or is there public hours to go in 
there or what? 
 
President Blume stated, it’s not finished yet.   
 
Mr. Plavnicky stated, it’s not finished.  Okay.  Another thing.  I heard that 
there’s personal vehicles in there.  The vehicles in there are owned by the 
town? 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 4 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
President Blume stated, the Fire Department. 
 
Mr. Plavnicky stated, the Fire Department. Okay. 
 
Alderman Jerome Fainer stated, Charter Hose owns two of the vehicles that are 
in there. 
 
Mr. Plavnicky asked, how many vehicles are in there? 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, presently five. 
 
Mr. Plavnicky stated, five vehicles.  Charter Hose owns two.   
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, Webster Hose owns one and two are being repaired 
for other companies. 
 
Mr. Plavnicky asked, so is this museum on its way to be opening or… 
 
President Blume stated, about a year.  
 
President Blume asked three times if any member of the public wished to 
address the Board.  Being none, he declared the Public Session closed.   
 

Public Official Session 
 

Acting Mayor Stephen Blume 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporation Counsel Blake 
 
I know that you have a full agenda and another meeting to attend tonight. In 
the interest of time are there any questions? 
 
Alderman Jerome Fainer stated, I just want to remark, they cleaned up Bassett 
Street.   
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated yes, he got his insurance money.  At the 
meeting we told Mr. Marganski to go out there and check that. 
 

Police Chief Kevin Hale 
 
As you’re well aware we have our Awards Ceremony in another hour or so. 
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 5 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

May 23 is the Woodbridge Avenue Memorial.  It’s at 2 p.m. Sunday in front of 
the monuments on Woodbridge Avenue.  I would encourage you to go over 
there; it’s one of the last neighborhood memorials if not in the State, then in 
the country.  Corporation Counsel Blake is the Master of Ceremonies again this 
year, and I hope he’ll sing for us as he did last year.  It’s a very nice ceremony. 
 
The Memorial Day Parade is Sunday the 30th at 2 p.m.  The route has been 
changed a little bit – instead of going over the Maple Street Bridge it will go 
from Olson onto Pershing, over the bridge then West Main and back down Main 
Street.  
 

Personnel Director Claude Perry, Sr.  
 
You have two resolutions on the agenda tonight in regard to the Small Cities 
Block Grant Program.  
 
We have in the audience Dr. Lisa Low who has been selected to be our 
consultant if you approve the contract tonight.   
 
The other resolution is because we’re discussing a higher amount before you 
that we’re going for based on what we’ve done through the Community 
Development Forum and public sessions on what kinds of activities we need to 
go through with.   
 
Alderman Sharkey asked, is the figure $300,000 or $600,000? 
 
President Blume stated, it was higher if it went across the bridge to the Boys 
and Girls Club, but it’s not.  So it’s 300,000 for home rehab. 
 

Joseph Miller – Comptroller 
 
Last night we had the public hearing on the budget.  There will be the last and 
final budget workshop tomorrow night.  Approximately 400 people were at the 
high school auditorium last night voicing their opinion.   
 
Now for the good news. Standard & Poors has upped the City borrowing to A+ 
from A.  Moody’s has also upped our borrowing rate from A3 to A1.   Whatever 
is going on here we’ve got to be doing it right. 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Finance Committee – Alderman Gene Sharkey 

 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to pay all bills if found to be correct; SECONDED by 
Alderman Kolakowski.  A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 6 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
Economic Development Commission – Alderman John Marini 

 
I’d like to remind this Board that the Economic Development Commission will 
meet tomorrow night for the first time in approximately 3 years. Thanks to the 
good efforts of Jim Prestiano – his persistence as Acting Chairman of the 
Commission; to our Acting Mayor Steve Blume, Corporation Counsel Kevin 
Blake and to Claude Perry, for keeping this project steered on track.   
 
I’d like to encourage all of Aldermen to attend tomorrow night at 7 p.m., 
particularly those Aldermen on the Economic Development Commission.  It’s 
good to show our support from the start for this Commission.  It’s our first 
meeting where a lot of new ideas will be expressed and the direction of the 
committee is going to be decided.  Input from everywhere is appreciated.  I 
particularly would value the opinions of everyone from this Board and anyone 
from the public – certainly bringing business back to Ansonia has to be our 
number one priority. 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to accept the report; SECONDED by Alderman Sharkey.  
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Alderman Jerome Fainer – Ansonia Rescue and Medical Services Committee 

 
ARMS had 209 calls – 132 transports and $52,051.84 collected. 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to accept the report; SECONDED by Alderman Beall.  A 
voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Alderman Edward Adamowski – Public Works Committee 

 
The Public Works Committee met yesterday with two people for the 
rehabilitation of the solid waste transfer station.  That will be coming up 
tonight under communications. 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to accept the report; SECONDED by Alderman Fainer.  
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Municipal Reports / Annual Reports 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to accept all municipal and annual reports, dispense 
with the reading and place them on file; SECONDED by Alderman Beall.  A voice 
vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Tax Refunds 
 
None presented. 
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 7 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Claims 
 
03-10-760 Nancy Rich (Amended) 
04-10-762 Mary Bogden 
05-10-763 Bonnie Scholl 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to refer the claims to Corporation Counsel Blake and 
the Claims Committee; SECONDED by Alderman Adamowski.  A voice vote was 
taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
4 Communications and 4 Late Communications 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to accept all of the communications, dispense with the 
reading, and place them on file. If an Alderman wishes one read or acted upon, 
the communications will be brought up individually in their order on the 
agenda; SECONDED by Alderman Sharkey.  A voice vote was taken and the 
MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
 

Communication #1 
From:  Chairman John Finnucan, Board of Public Works  
Re:  Bid Awards – Cold Milling, Road Reclaiming, Vegetation Control 
 
Alderman Fainer MOVED, per the recommendation of the Board of Public Works, 
to award the bid for Cold Milling to Costello Industries, Inc. as outlined in 
Communication #1; SECONDED by Alderman Jeanette.  A voice vote was taken 
and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Alderman Fainer MOVED, per the recommendation of the Board of Public Works, 
to award the bid for Road Reclaiming to Rafferty Fine Grading as outlined in 
Communication #1; SECONDED by Alderman Jeanette.  A voice vote was taken 
and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Alderman Fainer MOVED, per the recommendation of the Board of Public Works, 
to award the bid for Vegetation Control to Coastline Consulting, LLC as outlined 
in Communication #1; SECONDED by Alderman Jeanette.  A voice vote was 
taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 

Communication #2 
From: Public Works Director Michael Schryver 
Re:   Rehabilitation of Solid Waste Transfer Station 
 
See Late Resolution #2. 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 8 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

Communication #3 
From:  Corporation Counsel Kevin Blake  
Re:  Environmental Land Use Regulation 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, this is to put land restrictions on 
environmental work that’s being done at 497 East Main and 153 Main – the 
Palmer Building and Ansonia Technology Park. Once that’s done, DEP will 
complete the environmental cleanup.  
 
See Resolution #1. 
 
 

Communication #4 
From: ANC Director Donna Lindgren 
Re:  Red Wing Pond House 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, I want to discuss now how we can do something to 
help them out on this.  I think this is the point in the meeting we can talk about 
this a little bit more.  We met with Mr. Wade and Mrs. Smith.  Nobody denies 
that it’s a great project.  We gave a proposal to them [inaudible] under 
recommendation of our liability carrier, it was that we enter into a licensing 
agreement with Friends of the Nature Center and the Nature Center itself, and 
lease them that building for $1 a year.  Then, they would be responsible for all 
of the liability, utilities, that’s connected with it.  That’s the last offer we had 
discussed.  You people were going to take it back to the Friends of the Nature 
Center and deal with the thing.  I know, also, they’re under a time constraint 
for filing the paperwork from the State, so if we could somehow have that 
paperwork that goes to the State relieve the City of the liability of it, I think we 
can move on with this for the $1 a year somehow. 
 
Corporation Counsel Kevin Blake stated, the way I read this, they’re submitting 
a grant application under the City of Ansonia’s name.  It means that goes 
against what we’re – we want to have sort of a whole separate entity.  Anything 
can go in there with a license agreement – they’re on their own for everything.  
This is sort of binding the City and I think that is not the intent of what the 
Board of Aldermen is saying in terms of being sort of connected, joint venture.  
We’re saying they’re a sole venture and the City is just the landlord, and they’re 
the tenant.  I think this is your binding City money, this Red Wing Pond House, 
based on the application that has been submitted.  
 
President Blume asked Mrs. Lindgren to address the Board. 
 
Donna Lindgren, Director, Ansonia Nature Center 
 
It would be almost ridiculous to assume that a volunteer organization of 400 
people could take on the responsibility of running, of maintaining, of paying all 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 9 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

of the bills for a Nature Pre-school Program at the Red Wing Pond House.  It 
took the Friends of the Nature Center four years to raise over $400,000 to build 
that building with this Board’s approval in 1993.  You wrote a resolution then, 
supporting that whole idea to build a building for a Nature Pre-school Program.  
As you know, the building is occupied for four years as a Board of Education 
School Readiness Program - also a liability of the City of Ansonia.  The entire 
park is a liability to the City of Ansonia, as are all of your other parks as well.  
It is totally absurd to me to think that the Friends of the Nature Center after 
doing all that they have done for this City would have to take on the 
responsibility for insurance, for maintenance, for running that facility.  We are 
not asking for the City of Ansonia to give us any money.  We are asking for the 
support of the City of Ansonia’s administration for this project.  We are going 
to not be able to take advantage of any State money.  We have an application 
pending with The Community Foundation of Greater New Haven.  You know 
that they’re not going to give us money unless they think the town is behind 
this idea.  I don’t think that they will. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, don’t we currently pay for all of the utilities now? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, you do. 
 
President Blume stated, but when it’s a pre-school it’s going to be completely 
different.  It’s going to be open.  Everything is going to be higher.  The liability 
is going to be more, all the costs are going to go up. 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, may I just say President Blume, I have never lobbied the 
Board of Aldermen.  That’s not what I feel comfortable doing.  The Friends of 
the Nature Center have never lobbied the Board of Aldermen for anything.  This 
is a very important project.  I have seen in my tenure at the Nature Center of 
almost 30 years a disconnect of children with the natural world.  I believe that 
those kids have to connect to nature before they go to school.  I know that 
there are schools in our town and in surrounding communities that don’t let 
the kids outside if it’s below 32 degrees.  If it’s raining at all they don’t go 
outside.  They don’t go outside at all because they’re so busy studying for tests 
that they’re going to take to pass some test for the future, for this No Child Left 
Behind.  I think that the environment - the natural world is in danger because of 
this disconnect with the kids that are growing up today.  They’re all plugged 
into computers.  That’s not a good place and I think the nature world is 
extremely important, as you must know it is right now.  That building was built 
with money from the Exxon Valdez oil spill.  That’s how we put the solar panels 
on the roof.  We want to stop things like that from impacting our world.  I think 
this is how we have to do it.  I would like to think that my town would support 
that – would help us to get the money for that.  You’re paying utilities now.  
You’re paying liability now.  It would be licensed by the State of Connecticut 
with all sorts of controls in place.  I want you to reconsider this stance. 
 
Alderman Marini stated, I think I can speak for the Board in saying that we see 
this as a worthy cause in terms of what it can bring to Ansonia, however I think 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 10 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

the disconnect may be just in the numbers. We’ve been told that there’s a 
significant obligation in terms of liability.  However, I think we need to know 
concretely what the difference in the liability would be.  Are we talking about a 
different policy that covers something like this because it’s not only a pre-
school but an outdoor pre-school – is that where the liability picture comes in?  
Is it simply just an additional school added onto the set that we already have?  
If we don’t know what we’re talking about, we really can’t make an informed 
decision about this.     
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, what were the numbers in liability when the Board 
of Education ran their program there?  We picked up that financial liability, 
what were those dollars and how much did it affect the City?  Does anybody 
know? 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, I think we can find out from the Board of Education. I 
think they paid the utilities when they were using it.  I think they said when 
they pulled out of the building, they pulled out because of the cost of the 
utilities.  We can approach the Board of Education and actually ask them what 
their utility costs were. 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, I looked at the utility bills for the past six month in that 
building.  It came to $10 a day for the last six months.   
 
President Blume asked, was the heat $900 a month? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied, $10 a day.  That was one bill for one month in the 
middle of the winter.  That $10 a day is including the heat, the electricity and 
the water.  $10 a day.  I would like to discuss these points with all of you and I 
hope that all of you will come up on Saturday to see this facility because it’s 
well worth your time to do that.  I hope that you will act tonight to approve this 
resolution that needs to be certified by the 15th if we’re going to take advantage 
of that State funding of $25,000.  That was a desire of Senator Crisco in 
October and I think it still is. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, I agree with Alderman Marini that if we could get 
some figures.   
 
Alderman Marini stated, it just wouldn’t make sense to vote on a resolution 
before we have the numbers in front of us, and time seems of the essence 
which means if we’re going to do something we need to act.  It’s pretty simple – 
we just need statistics. 
 
Alderman Fainer stated, just look at the business report that they use – this is 
$50,000 in start-up costs.  Who is paying that? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, we’re trying to get the grant money, Mr. Fainer.   
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 11 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Alderman Fainer stated, I also don’t understand on the grant, and I happen to 
know the grant writer, that money was earmarked – we’re told that it’s 
earmarked for the preschool thing, but it’s earmarked for the Nature Center. All 
of a sudden last week it became it wasn’t earmarked for the… 
 
Mrs. Lindgren interjected, it always has been. 
 
Alderman Fainer stated, no.  I’m sorry. 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, I’ll show you the literature from Senator Crisco.    
 
President Blume stated, we need to know what we’re doing.  You can empower 
me to sign this resolution if we get the numbers and… 
 
Alderman Marini interjected, I think we need to take a look at numbers, and 
anything that has an indication of where the money was originally allocated to 
go to.  Another thing I’d be interested in, because this really is an interesting 
idea and I do think that there are people that would like to bring their children 
to something like this, and it seems like it could be a money maker.  One think 
I’d like to know is, are there case studies? Have case studies been done?  Do we 
know of other programs like this in the State?  Do we know how much it costs 
for them?   
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, we have a 19-page business plan in front of you.  It spells 
all of that out. 
 
Alderman Marini asked, including case studies? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied, yes, citing other nature centers that have pre-school 
programs. 
 
Alderman Fainer stated, I wonder how the Board of Ed will feel about that. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, I have one other thing to bring up, and please believe 
me, I’m not playing the anti person, I’m being the devil’s advocate looking as 
you say for numbers.  When it was run as a pre-school under the Board of Ed, I 
think it was open daily and when they had inclement weather and so forth, I 
think the Board of Education plowed it – the Board of Education took care of 
that, did they not?  The plowing up to the door? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied yes, the Board of Education plowed in front of it.  Yes. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, the thing would be, then the City is backing it, 
someone is going to have to do that.  That means our Public Works has to do it.  
We need to find out from Board of Education how they did it.  We’re saying that 
Mr. Schryver will have to assign another truck every day.  We need to know 
what the costs are on these things and who is going to handle it. 
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 12 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

I’m more than willing to back you signing a resolution to do this, but we need 
some figures. 
 
Alderman Adamowski stated, I think there is too much up in the air right now 
to make a decision on this.  
 
Alderman Blume stated, the date for the resolution is Saturday.  
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, the 15th we’re talking about $11,000.   
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, $25,000. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, then it’s changed since Monday.  As of Monday we 
were talking about $11,000. 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, that’s what we all thought. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, for $11,000 I’d say we still needed to find out and so 
forth.  Now they say it’s back to the original grant of $25,000.  I don't know 
what our input it.  Are we spending another $25,000 to do this?  If so, that 
money isn’t in the budget.  It’s not there right now. 
 
Alderman Nihill asked, do you have any other grants, is there another $25,000 
for next year? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied yes, we do.  The Friends have come up with $8,000 of 
their own money again.  We’ve got money to do some of the work over there.  If 
we get $25,000 from the State of Connecticut there’s another grant that’s in the 
pipeline right now through The Community Foundation of Greater New Haven.  
If we could come up with that first year’s funding we think that it can become a 
self-supporting entity and not a drain on the taxpayers. 
 
President Blume asked, what if we can’t come up with it? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied, then it’s dead in the water until we can. 
 
Alderman Nihill stated, the first year’s funding is $120,000? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied, it’s $55,000 for the first year funding. 
 
Alderman Marini asked, have any other private funding sources been explored?   
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied, we’re looking for rich millionaires all the time.   
 
Alderman Marini stated, what about something like a sponsorship thing like 
you see these stores, like Whole Foods, that would probably like to affix their 
name to something like this.  
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 13 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Mrs. Lindgren stated, unfortunately you have a building that’s not being used 
for what it should be used for.  At the same time that the economy went south.  
A lot of foundations dried up, they are trying to keep people in housing and 
with food in their bellies rather than funding something like this. 
 
Alderman Marini asked, what if by resolution we were able to steer out a course 
to be used for what it was intended to be used for with keeping in mind that we 
were going to look for a private-public partnership for it? 
 
Mrs. Lindgren replied, that’s fine. 
 
Alderman Marini stated, actually during Economic Development we touched on 
Lisa Low, our advisor for our Small Cities Grant.  We’ve also discussed, some of 
us here, the potential of Economic Development getting involved in bringing 
the private sector into a lot of funding dilemmas when there is simply no 
money in the public sphere – starting to take a look at what partnerships could 
be crafted. 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, the Nature Center staff are not grant writers.   
 
Alderman Marini stated, it’s tough with the deadline coming so close and so 
much up in the air and unknown, considering what kind of precarious 
economic condition we’re in right now, it is very difficult to sort of roll the dice 
in the midst of everything else that’s happening.  At the same time, I don't 
know if I speak for the Board, but just completely abandoning this idea, I’m not 
inclined to do that either.   
 
President Blume asked, can this resolution be written so that we’re not liable 
for… 
 
Alderman Marini stated, it would need to be written in a way that takes into 
account there are so many unknowns that we can’t be putting ourselves out 
there in a way that we’re going to commit ourselves.  Unfortunately, we simply 
cannot afford to commit ourselves to the long haul.  
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, I’m just asking that you take a look at your 1993 
resolution and duplicate it.  That’s all. 
 
Alderman Marini stated, it may say that but of course, unfortunately 
sometimes, not only do circumstances change but conditions, even if we want 
fully to commit on this, the time is not right to say we’re all in it.  Not only 
could it fall from your end, it fell from our end because of that and it would be 
a disservice to everyone to have a program that starts to get up and running 
then all of a sudden from our end we have to say wait a minute, we can’t be 
there like we promised.  Then maybe that’s where this whole liability portion 
starts to come in.  We need some hard looking here, at numbers, and what we 
could do.  I don't know if it’s possible to be able to do anything by the 15th.  
That doesn’t mean we can’t figure out another solution for this.  Maybe this 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 14 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

$25,000 – worst case scenario that might not pan out.  At the same time it’s not 
saying that this isn’t a project that we can’t figure out. 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, I think it’s foolish to throw that $25,000 away.   
 
Alderman Marini stated, I’m not comfortable with the resolution as it stands. 
 
President Blume stated, the way the money is in the City now… 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, if the resolution passes, can they use the money 
for the Nature Center, not directly, if the other funding doesn’t come through? 
 
President Blume stated, it says the Red Wing Pond House in the grant.  It’s 
already been sent in.   
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, this is focused on the Red Wing Pond House 
and toward the nature based pre-school.  Again, my concern is that in essence 
the way this is, the City of Ansonia itself, not the Board of Education, is 
becoming an owner or an operator of a day care center and everything else that 
goes with it.  I’m not sure the City wants to do that with all the financing, 
because they’d be our employees, our liability, everything else.  I’m not sure 
that was the intent that the City would be the operator of that pre-school.  I 
have some concerns there. 
 
President Blume stated, it has been submitted. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, can’t we modify it so they can at least apply for 
the $25,000? 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, my understanding in talking with the grant 
writer is the initial intent was the Ansonia Nature Center and did not label it 
specifically to the Red Wing Pond House. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, so if the original intent was the Ansonia Nature 
Center, can’t we go back to that Ansonia Nature Center so the $25,000 isn’t lost 
for the City on a whole or the Nature Center, and then determine at a later date 
if the funding is possible to go forward with a preschool?  So that the $25,000 
isn’t lost in translation. 
 
President Blume stated, that’s been submitted already. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, but he said we could modify it because the 
original paperwork says the Ansonia Nature Center.   
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, that’s what we gave to you, our application? 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, this is what I got from Beth Lynch, yes.  That 
can be revised, the last page. 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 15 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
Alderman Fainer stated, you keep talking about the economy.  Who is to say 
there are a bunch of people out there that can afford this?  It’s not cheap.  Is 
there a market out there for it?  A lot of people are without jobs.  Last night – 
the people at the public hearing… 
 
Alderman Marini stated, we’re also talking about the need for preschools of 
course, at the Board of Education.   
 
[Several people talking at once at this point – inaudible] 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, we have sent out 300 surveys and asked those very same 
questions.  We have enough response that we think we could get that place 
going.   
 
Alderman Fainer stated, we think. 
 
Mrs. Lindgren stated, we think.  We don’t know, I mean it’s easy to say… 
 
Alderman Marini stated, any business does have risk, so that does have to be 
computed.  During another economic climate I think we’d be having a very 
different conversation.  I think maybe the key here is revising this so we can 
capitalize on getting the money and figuring out how to work this out in the 
long run. 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, I think part of the narrative and that could 
be worked and not [inaudible] preschool.  This went to DECD.  
 
President Blume stated, so we’d have to go back to DECD tomorrow and revise 
it – the application? 
 
Lisa Low asked, would you like me to take a look at this problem and try to 
solve it? 
 
President Blume stated, she’s very good – yes, could you? 
 
Ms. Low stated, I think I can solve it.   
 
President Blume stated, Lisa is the one we hired to do the Economic 
Development – she knows what she’s doing.  L 
 
Alderman Sharkey asked, if we apply for this money, and don’t use it, what’s 
the worst thing that we do, give it back? 
 
Aldermen Nihill and Kolakowski both responded, use it for the Ansonia Nature 
Center.   
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 16 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Corporation Counsel Blake stated, the Nature Center… [several people talking at 
once – inaudible]. 
 
Alderman Sharkey speaking …we apply and put it under that it’s going to the 
Nature Center with the idea that the Nature Center is solely using it for the Red 
Wing Pond House, but the numbers come forth and the Red Wing Pond House is 
not flying, can’t we still use the money for the Nature Center?  What’s the worst 
thing we do?  We just don’t take the money from the grant. 
 
President Blume stated, just to move this on, we will have Lisa take a look at 
this tomorrow.  If she can figure this out to make everybody happy with this 
thing, empower me after that to sign the resolution and we’ll send it in. 
 
Ms. Low stated, I would be happy to work on it. 
 
President Blume stated, I think we’re pretty lucky to have found her. 
 
Alderman Jeanette MOVED to have Lisa Low get together with Donna Lindgren 
and Corporation Counsel Kevin Blake and work it out in a way that promotes 
the cause of the Nature-based pre-school and at the same time protects the 
City.  If so, President Blume is empowered to sign the resolution for the grant; 
SECONDED by Alderman Kolakowski.  A voice vote was taken and the MOTION 
PASSED 10-0. 
 
Late Communications 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to accept all late Communications and take them up 
in their order; SECONDED by Alderman Adamowski.  A voice vote was taken and 
the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Public Session on Late Communications 
 
President Blume asked if any member of the public wished to speak on the four 
late communications. 
 
Ken Plavnicky 
 
Where is the money coming from to pay the attorney? 
 
President Blume stated, we need to decide whether to pay him or not yet.  It’s 
coming up tonight.  Maybe we’re not going to pay it. 
 
President Blume asked if any other person wished to speak.  Being none he 
declared the public session closed. 
 
 
 

Late Communication #1 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 17 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

From: Corporation Counsel Kevin Blake  
Re:  Payment of Attorney’s Fees – case of Officer Mustafa Salahuddin 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake suggested discussing this item in Executive Session. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski MOVED to discuss Late Communication #1 in Executive 
Session; SECONDED by Alderman Nihill.  A voice vote was taken and the 
MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
 

Late Communication #2 
From: Chairman Edward Adamowski, Public Works Committee 
Re:  Selection of Design Consultant for the Solid Waste Transfer Station 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to accept Late Communication #2 and take it up 
under Resolutions; SECONDED by Alderman Nihill. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, what exactly would he do, a study or redesign? 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake explained, we had a fire a couple of years ago with 
the shredder.  Money has been set aside to rebuild the shredder or to 
rehabilitate the shredder and the incinerator and do something that will be 
more up-to-date and efficient with that insurance money.  This is to get a 
design consultant to come in, design something, and bid everything with the 
projection that it’s going to go with the money we have – it’s not going to 
exceed the $1.4 million. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, is the cost for this design coming out of the $1.4 
million? 
 
President Blume replied yes, everything is contained in there.  
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, do we have an estimate of how much this design 
is going to cost? 
 
President Blume stated, not yet; they have to start.  
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, they didn’t submit any proposal of how much it’s 
going to cost? 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, this this is to hire a design consultant to 
start looking at it. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, so, you don’t have to go out to bid for a design 
consultant? 
 
President Blume stated, we did.   
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 18 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Alderman Kolakowski asked, nobody came back with a number? 
 
President Blume replied, no, because they have to do the study first.  I knew 
this was going to come up because… 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, out of that $1.4 million, if they say it’s going to 
be a half-million to design it, we already have $900,000 left to build it? 
 
President Blume stated, then we’re not going to proceed, we’ll do something 
different. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, shouldn’t we have a number as to how much the 
design team will cost to design it?  There shouldn’t be a dollar figure 
associated with the design fee? 
 
President Blume stated, I called them today, I called both today.  They haven’t 
gotten that far.  They have to get into this. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, how do you hire someone?  Okay, my hourly rate 
is $350 an hour to cut fruit.  That’s what it is.  What is their hourly rate to 
design this thing?  What’s going to be the total bill out of the $1.4 million? 
 
President Blume replied, it hasn’t been designed.  Tara, there is no bill. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, right, but you have to submit a project and a 
project plan.  The project plan comes with a figure at the end of it. 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, that’s what this will do, get a contract for 
them to do the project plan and the costs.  That’s the next thing. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, right, but if you went out to bid, what were the 
numbers? 
 
President Blume stated, no companies submitted any numbers. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski asked, how do you win the bid?   
 
Corporation Counsel Blake replied, it’s just like when the School Building 
Commission we went out for the new schools, these contractors came in, these 
architects.  They had all these grand designs but they didn’t have the actual 
costs in there. 
 
President Blume explained, this was a Request for Qualifications.  What their 
qualifications were as to doing such a project.  We spoke to both of the 
companies that came in and decided that this company had the best 
qualifications.  That’s as far as it went.  That’s all we’re doing. 
 
Alderman Marini asked, what if it turns out that the fees are astronomical? 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 19 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
President Blume replied, then we do something else. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, so you have that option, it’s not like they’re hired. 
 
President Blume stated, it says right in the thing, “qualifications.”  They were 
hired – I know what you’re saying; I called both of them today.   
 
Alderman Fainer stated, being involved with construction, using your request 
for qualifications, then they come back and tell you, for instance, six percent of 
it, whatever the total bid package is, that’s what they take, or five percent, you 
know.  And if you don’t like what they want, then you go back out to bid. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, it just doesn’t say that, and that wasn’t indicated 
to anyone. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, last night in meeting with these people, we talked 
about things they had built prior to this, we looked at different designs that 
they had.  We had Mr. Schryver involved and we asked questions of both 
companies like, “how would you handle the solid waste, would you use the pit 
and would you continue to load it into a compactor and compact it into the 
trailers, and then haul it away, or would you weigh it out on the floor without 
compacting it, and be picking it up and putting it into the trailers?”  There are 
two different designs involved here.  One is, the people that haul it out on 
trailers want so much weight in their trailers.  It’s not worth it to them to haul 
it out unless they get a certain weight.   At present we compact it.  We compact 
it all the time.  We listened to both people’s design ideas on it.  One said they 
could save the amount of money that we spend on compactors and use that 
more into the building end of it.  The other people are more into using 
compactors and getting more in the trailers because the trailers are going to 
Bristol where we’re presently hauling it.  New Haven hauls their all the way to 
Hartford.  So there are two different theories.  We talked about it as a 
committee and talked about it with Mr. Schryver as to what we presently do, 
and what do you recommend – which avenue do we take?  The avenue that Mr. 
Schryver said and the way they feel most comfortable with is compacting.  We, 
as a committee, went with United, which had the idea of continuing the method 
we presently have – compacting and haul the open-top trailers out that way.  
They said there is nothing really wrong with our theory of doing it, except that 
our building caught on fire.  Number two, to load through that complex doesn’t 
work, so they have to redesign it.  Yes, they will use the same idea.  Did either 
one of them submit plans?  No.  Did either one have a dollar figure on it?  No.  
All we were doing was looking for which idea, which theory do we go forward 
with.  Now we say to that company – design something and give us a figure on 
it.  I don’t know what it’s going to cost to design it, but they certainly weren’t 
going to spend $40,000 to $50,000 on a design to hand us and then have us 
say, you didn’t win the bid.  Both came with prior projects, pictures, things 
they had done.  They offered to take us places where we could see it.  They had 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 20 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

two totally different theories. The theory the City of Ansonia was looking to 
continue with was compacting. 
 
Alderman Adamowski stated, right, and I think the other one would have been 
quite a substantial amount of more money.  It would have been way above and 
beyond the $1.4 million that we have allocated. 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, if you’re familiar with the system we have, we throw 
it in a pit that’s very deep, then we haul it out.  The other one meant building 
big enough to take all of this stuff in, without compacting it.  It was an 
enormous size.  So what we did, we eliminated one design team and said, that’s 
not what we want to consider. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, all I’m saying is that without Gene explaining it 
all, how would the other members of the Board know that, or anyone sitting up 
here, or the audience, and just say, yes, we gave them the bid. Information is 
powerful; it’s nice to know those things. 
 
President Blume stated, they’ve got five or six sites they’ve already done, and 
they’re going to take Schryver.  Maybe he’ll change his mind – you know – I 
want him to see other places, how they flow, how they work.  They’re going to 
come down Saturday and are just going to sit there and see it back up.  That pit 
– that’s the problem, the pit.  You have to back into it.  Well, if the guy’s not in 
a hurry, it could take an hour to unload the truck.  They’re going to do a study 
first. That’s all. 
 
Alderman Kolakowski stated, thank you for explaining. 
 
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0 to take it up under 
Resolutions. 
 

Late Communication #3 
From: Corporation Counsel Kevin Blake  
Re:  License Agreement – Fitzpatrick’s Inc. – East Main Street Parking Lot 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake explained, I talked to Mr. Paul Fitzpatrick and he has 
not gotten back to me.  He is reviewing it.  Basically this is terminating the 3-
year lease agreement.  This is a license agreement so if the City need to, when 
we sell those buildings and we need those other parking spaces we can 
terminate this.  This also includes liability for instance if he has an oil spill on 
one of his trucks, he’s got to have the insurance for that.  Provides assistance 
to a local merchant who right now isn’t using much because of the economy, 
but he did when it was going, he needed that space.   We have other people 
using that space – the Post Office and the Birmingham Group.  What I did, not 
to hold up another month with him, because it is a lease of City property, I sent 
this to the Planning and Zoning Commission as an 8-24 referral to see if they 
have a problem with it or not.  I don’t presume a problem because they already 
agreed to it once.  This arrangement goes back to 2001.  I supplied you with 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 21 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

both the old agreement and the new.  I also would ask if he does sign it that the 
Mayor or the Acting Mayor can sign the agreement. 
 
President Blume stated, when we finally sell this building over here, if we need 
the spaces as part of the sale, we can get them.  It would be hell if we blew the 
deal.   
 
Corporation Counsel Blake stated, there are two Resolutions for that. 
 
Resignations 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to accept, with regret, the resignation of Wendy 
Fowler (Anderson) from the Inland-Wetlands Commission, and to send her a 
letter of thanks for her service to the City; SECONDED by Alderman Adamowski. 
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Ordinances 
 
Ordinance #1 – Dissolution of the Ansonia Municipal Parking Authority 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to TABLE; SECONDED by Alderman Adamowski.  A voice 
vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Resolutions 

 

Resolution #1 
Re:  Environmental Land Use Restriction at 153 Main and 497 East Main Street 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, this is about the properties at 153 Main Street and 
497 East Main Street – the ATP and Palmer Buildings.  We’re in the process, 
we’ve had the closing on it, and we’re trying to finalize the final sale of that 
property to the buyer – we had to do an environmental cleanup.  This 
resolution empowers the Acting Mayor to sign and execute any and all forms 
necessary in the application of environmental land use restriction.   
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to adopt Resolution #1; SECONDED by Alderman 
Jeanette.   
 
President Blume stated, I went to COG (Valley Council of Governments) last 
month – that’s why I got the extra $70,000, and it’s all set to go.  We had 
another snag – and this has been years and years of snags.  Now finally we’ll 
sign this thing, get it done and we’ll get our money back.   
 
Alderman Sharkey added, when we finally sell, $600,000 goes back into the 
City coffers. 
 
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 22 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

Resolution #2 
Re:  Agreement between the City of Ansonia and Lisa Low & Associates (LLA) 
 
Alderman Marini explained, this is part of the Small Cities Grant Program.  We 
had interviews about a month ago for the advisor for the program.  Lisa Low 
stood out because of her qualifications and her take on the direction that 
Economic Development should be taking in Ansonia.  I’m happy to say that 
she’s making some impact right off the bat here tonight. 
 
Alderman Marini MOVED to adopt Resolution #2; SECONDED by Alderman 
Jeanette.  A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 

Resolution #3 
Re:  Small Cities Community Block Grant Program Application 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, this would be the grant Lisa Low will be 
administering. 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to adopt Resolution #3; SECONDED by Alderman 
Beall. A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 

Resolution #4 
Re:  Maintenance of Municipal Parking Lots 
 
Alderman Beall MOVED to TABLE; SECONDED by Alderman Nihill.  A voice vote 
was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Late Resolutions 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to accept four Late Resolutions; SECONDED by 
Alderman Adamowski. A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Public Session on Late Resolutions 
 
President Blume asked if any member of the public wished to speak on Late 
Resolutions #1 through 4. 
 
Being none, he declared the public session closed. 
 

Late Resolution #1 
Re:  Application for DECD Urban Action Grant Program for Red Wing Pond 
House 
 
Alderman Sharkey stated, we’ve talked about this and we have agreed to have 
Lisa Low review this with Corporation Counsel Blake and Donna Lindgren, and 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 23 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

if they come forward with something agreeable to that, then the Acting Mayor 
is empowered to sign the grant. 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to adopt Late Resolution #1; SECONDED by Alderman 
Kolakowski.   
 
President Blume stated, if everything is made right and Corporation Counsel 
Blake agrees with it, then I will sign it. 
 
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 

Late Resolution #2 
Re:  Selection of United International Corporation as Design Consultant for the 
Rehabilitation of the Public Works Solid Waste Transfer Station 
 
Alderman Marini MOVED to adopt Late Resolution #2; SECONDED by Alderman 
Sharkey.  A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 

Late Resolution #3 
Re:  8-24 Referral of License Agreement with Fitzpatrick’s Inc. – East Main Street 
parking lot to Planning and Zoning Commission  
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED to adopt Late Resolution #3; SECONDED by Alderman 
Beall.  A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 

Late Resolution #4 
Re:  Authorization for Mayor (or Acting Mayor) to sign License Agreement with 
Fitzpatrick’s Inc. – East Main Street parking lot 
 
Alderman Sharkey MOVED to adopt Late Resolution #4; SECONDED by Alderman 
Nihill.  A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 

Unfinished Business 
 
None presented. 
 
New Business 
 
None presented. 
 
Executive Session 
 
At approximately 6:35 p.m., Alderman Nihill MOVED to enter into Executive 
Session on Late Communication #1, and invited Corporation Counsel Kevin 
Blake to remain in the Aldermanic Chambers; SECONDED by Alderman Beall. 
 



MAY 11, 2010 BOARD OF ALDERMEN Page 24 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Ms. Jodie Mozder from The Valley Independent Sentinel asked, under the 
Freedom of Information Act, the reasoning for discussing this item in Executive 
Session. 
 
Corporation Counsel Blake explained that potential litigation is involved.  The 
question is whether or not they have to pay this or not.   
 
Alderman Marini stated, there is an opposing attorney present in the audience 
who would love to know our strategy and would love to pick our bones on this.  
We want to discuss this in executive session. 
 
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Return to Regular Session 
 
At approximately 6:44 p.m., Alderman Marini MOVED to return to regular 
session; SECONDED by Alderman Kolakowski.   A voice vote was taken and the 
MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Action on Executive Session Items 
 
Alderman Nihill MOVED authorize Corporation Counsel Blake to research the 
bill and to authorize him to enter into negotiations with the attorney as to the 
fee; SECONDED by Alderman Jeanette.   
 
Corporation Counsel Blake asked, if I get to an agreement, am I authorized to 
pay it? 
 
Alderman Nihill stated, and further, MOVE to authorize Corporation Counsel 
Blake to pay it in an amount not exceeding the original bill, if found to be 
correct. 
 
A voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
Adjournment 
  
Alderman Beall MOVED to adjourn; SECONDED by Alderman Adamowski.  A 
voice vote was taken and the MOTION PASSED 10-0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:50 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Patricia M. Bruder, Secretary 
Ansonia Board of Aldermen 


